
 

 
Board of Zoning Appeals and Property Review Commission 

August 17, 2021   6:15 PM  
Agenda 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Approval of prior minutes of July 20, 2021 

4. Zoning Appeals  

• VA 21-02 2136 S Lakeman Accessory Structure 

o Staff Report 

o Property Owner 

o Public Input 

o Board Discussion/Decision 

• VA 21-03 1501 Lynlee Dr New Construction 

o Staff Report 

o Property Owner 

o Public Input 

o Board Discussion/Decision 

• VA 21-06 3544 Ridgeway Rd Accessory Structure 

o Staff Report 

o Property Owner 

o Public Input 

o Board Discussion/Decision 

5. Property Maintenance  

6. Old Business  

7. New Business 

8. Adjournment 





BELLBROOK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS AND PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

July 20, 2021 
 

1 
 

 
PRESENT:  Aaron Burke  

Philip Ogrod  
Sharon Schroeder (arrived at 6:20) 
Chairperson Meredith Brinegar  

 
CALL TO ORDER:  

Chairperson Brinegar called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order at 6:16 PM. The 

Secretary called the roll. Mr. Burke, yes; Mr. Ogrod, yes; Brinegar, yes. 

Clerk of Council Pamela Timmons was also in attendance. 

Mrs. Timmons explained that due to the lack of a Planning and Zoning Administrative Assistant staff 

has been handling those duties.  The staff reports for tonight’s cases were written by Mrs. Timmons 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Mr. Ogrod made a motion to approve the prior minutes of February 16, 2021.  This was seconded by 

Mr. Burke.  All were in favor. The motion carried 3-0.  

 

ZONING APPEALS  

• VA 21-04 1706 N Belleview Drive Accessory Structure 

Mrs. Timmons presented the staff report.  The request is for a variance from Zoning Code 18.05(A) 

for a 1,040 square foot accessory structure on an existing foundation from a structure that had 

previously been on the property.  The property is 3.74 acres and there are no easements.  Mrs. 

Timmons reported that the Board had denied a similar request by the neighboring property owner 

of 1745 N Belleview Drive in 2020.  Emails were received from a resident who opposes the variance 

pointing to the precedence set last year.  The report did not contain a staff recommendation as Mrs. 

Timmons does not have the experience or training necessary to make one.  

Chairperson Brinegar swore in Rob Snyder, the property owner of 1706 N Belleview Drive.   

Mr. Snyder explained that four acres of land takes a lot of work and equipment.  There is an existing 

25 by 40-foot concrete pad and foundation that he would like to build on.  They looked at multiple 

ways to do that.  The easiest way is to rebuild on the existing foundation.  He showed the Board 

pictures he took that show the view outward from each direction of the proposed structure.  The land 



BELLBROOK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS AND PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

July 20, 2021 
 

2 
 

is wooded all around the location so the only house visible is his own.  The structure will be used to 

store a tractor, yard equipment, and sports equipment.   

Mr. Ogrod asked why the owner included a provision for the size to be up to 1,200 square foot and 

not just the 1,040 square foot of the proposed building.  Mr. Snyder answered that he spoke with the 

Greene County Building Inspectors who explained that there could be a chance that the size would 

increase due to the positioning of footers and things.   

Mr. Ogrod asked what the proposed height would be.  Mr. Snyder said the calculation determined it 

would be just under 17 feet high due to the pitch of the roof required by Greene County building 

Code.   

Chairperson Brinegar stated that the height also requires a variance since Bellbrook Zoning Code 

limits the height to 15 feet.    The Board can vote on both variances tonight.  Mrs. Timmons added 

that the Board has done this several times in the recent past and she would update the variance to 

include (a) for size and (b) for height. 

Mr. Ogrod asked if any trees would have to be removed and Mr. Snyder said no. 

Chairperson Brinegar wanted to consider the part of the Code that a variance should be considered 

based on an undue hardship to the property owner.   She asked Mr. Snyder if another possibly smaller 

structure could be constructed.  Mr. Snyder answered that to do that would require removal or partial 

removal of the concrete pad that is already in place.  Chairperson Brinegar added that the Board does 

take into consideration the addition of non-porous surfaces being added but that is not the case here.   

Mr. Ogrod asked for the reasoning for such a large structure.  Mr. Snyder answered that they have 

tools and equipment to care for such a large property plus shop tools, an ATV, bikes and kayaks. 

Mr. Ogrod asked if there would be any utilities run to the structure.  Mr. Snyder said there would be 

electric for lights.   

Chairperson Brinegar asked if Mr. Snyder was aware that a similar request by a neighbor was denied 

and he said that he heard that.   But she added that this is a very different property.  

The only public comment on the case came from a neighbor who felt like variances should not be 

allowed and referred to the denied request from the previous year. 



BELLBROOK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS AND PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

July 20, 2021 
 

3 
 

Mr. Burke commented that this case falls between two cases the Board has heard in the last couple 

of years; a large property on Upper Bellbrook Road and the other N. Belleview request but on a much 

smaller lot.   

Chairperson Brinegar stated that she understands the rationale behind this request due the needs 

when caring for a large property.   

Ms. Schroeder added that the neighbor’s property also had an unusual easement that affected the 

decision.  This request is similar to the Upper Bellbrook case where there had been an existing over-

sized structure on the lot. 

Ms. Schroeder made a motion to approve VA 21-04 a for a 1,040 square foot accessory structure at 

1706 N. Belleview.  Mr. Burke seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Ms. Schroeder, yes; 

Mr. Burke, yes; Mr. Ogrod, no; Chairperson Brinegar, yes.  The variance for size was approved 3-1. 

Mr. Burke made a motion to approve VA 21-04 b for a structure with a height of 17 feet at 1706 N. 

Belleview.  Mr. Ogrod seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Mr. Burke, yes; Mr. Ogrod, 

yes; Ms. Schroeder, yes; Chairperson Brinegar, yes.  The variance for height was approved 4-0. 

Mrs. Timmons stated that she will take the height requirement question to the City Manager to look 

to look into amending the Zoning Code.   

 

• VA 21-05 2097 Sheffield Place Accessory Structure 

Mrs. Timmons presented the staff report.  The request by Timothy Chandler is for a 240 square foot 

shed at 2097 Sheffield Place.  This structure would take the aggregate amount of added structures 

over the limit of 600 square foot defined by Code.   

Chairperson Brinegar swore in Tim Chandler, the property owner of 2097 Sheffield Place.   

Mr. Chandler explained that they wanted a shed to store garden and yard tools and would have no 

electricity.   The attached garage holds his wife’s car. The detached garage holds his truck and a boat.  

He added that 21 years ago he had requested building a 1,200 square foot garage but was denied.  

So, the garage is 600 square feet.  The lot is three quarters of an acre. 

Mr. Ogrod asked how far from the existing garage the shed would be placed.  Mr. Chandler stated it 

would be 9 foot behind the garage, 12 feet off the rear property line and 10 feet off the side property 

line.   



BELLBROOK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS AND PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

July 20, 2021 
 

4 
 

One neighbor spoke in support of the Chandler’s request.  Chairperson Brinegar swore in Charles 

Skipper 2109 Sheffield Place who stated that the Chandler’s take very good care of their property and 

he was sure that the shed would also look good and be well maintained. 

The Board members thanked Mr. Skipper saying that they appreciate input from neighbors.   

Chairperson Brinegar commented that there have been a lot of requests for oversized structures and 

the Board must decide if there is an exception to be made here or if there is a hardship.  

Mr. Burke added that this was more of a standard lot without the exceptional consideration of the 

other cases heard recently. 

Ms. Schroeder said this was a struggle for several reasons including that the owner had previously 

turned down for a larger structure years ago.    These owners are trying to take good care of their 

property. 

Mr. Ogrod said he didn’t feel like this was a hardship instance since there is already a 600 square foot 

accessory structure on the lot.   

 Ms. Schroeder made a motion to approve VA 21-05 for an accessory structure at 2097 Sheffield 

Place.  Chairperson Brinegar seconded the motion.  The Clerk called the roll.  Ms. Schroeder, yes; 

Chairperson Brinegar, no; Mr. Burke, no; Mr. Ogrod, no.  The variance was denied 3-1. 

 

PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION  

• Update on 2088 Dane Lane 

Mrs. Timmons reported that the City received payment from the property owner for the property 

maintenance violation. 

 

PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE REVIEW 

Mrs. Timmons explained that the review of the Property Maintenance Code is on hold due to 

staffing issues.   

Chairperson Brinegar wanted to state that reviewing and updating the Code is very important.  It 

needs to be clear and enforceable.  She hopes that this project will be kept as a priority. 

 



BELLBROOK BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS AND PROPERTY REVIEW COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 

July 20, 2021 
 

5 
 

OPEN COMMENT 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Burke made a motion to adjourn the meeting and it was seconded by Mr. Ogrod.  Chairperson 

Brinegar adjourned the meeting at 7:25 PM. 

 

_____________________________________ 
Meredith Brinegar, Chair 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Pamela Timmons, Secretary 





 

 

 

 

To: Board of Zoning Appeals 

From: Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 

Date: August 12, 2021 

Subject: Staff Report for VA 21-02 2136 Lakeman Dr  

 

Summary of the Request 

Request to build a 96-square-foot accessory structure 5 feet from the back and side property 
lines. 

Applicant Information 
Thomas and Diana Claude 
2136 S Lakeman Dr 
Bellbrook, OH 45305 

Current Zoning District 

R-1B 

Parcel Identification 

L35-0002-0013-0-0031-00 

Variance from code 

18.05A ACCESSORY BUILDINGS:  

 In a residential zone, no garage or other accessory building shall be erected within a required 
side yard or front yard.  

When located at least sixty (60) feet from the front property line and completely to the rear of 
the main dwelling, the accessory building may be erected not less than eight (8) feet from the 
side or rear lot lines.  Provided that when access to a garage is from an alley, such garage shall 
be located not less than ten (10) feet from the alley.  

 



Applicant’s Reason for the Request 

The applicants wish to avoid a hill that runs down the backyard.  The land is flatter closer to the 
boundary lines. 

Surrounding Land Use within 1,000 Feet 

Residential 

Previous Related Development Decisions in the Immediate Area (3-5 Years) 

None 

Comprehensive Plan Applied to the Geographical Area 

NA 

Existing Public Utilities 

Plat map shows a drainage easement but the Service Director inspected the sight and there is 
no drain or swale on the property. 

Soil Survey Data 

NA 

Classification of Streets, Traffic Volumes & Direction, Planned Improvements 

NA 

Flood Plain Information 

NA 

Comments from City and County Agencies 

NA 

Supporting Maps & Graphics 

Enclosed 

Staff Recommendation 



 

No current Zoning Official for the City 

 

















 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 

From: Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 

Date: August 12, 2021 

Subject: Staff Report for VA 21-03 1501 Lynlee Dr 

 

Summary of the Request 

The request is to add a post and beam structure to cover a concrete patio addition that 
extends into the front and side yards of the property 

Applicant Information 
Brett Doudican 
1501 Lynlee Dr 
Bellbrook, OH 45305 

Current Zoning District 

R-1A 

Parcel Identification 

L35000100120008700 

Applicable Zoning Code 

18.11 PROJECTIONS INTO REQUIRED YARDS:  

  (2) Front yards:  

  No structure may project into a required front yard; however, unroofed porches and steps 
may extend from the dwelling into the required front yard a maximum of ten (10) feet.  

  (3) No structure may project into a required side yard  except that, where a single lot under 
one ownership existed in a residential district at the time of passage of this Ordinance, and 
such lot is of insufficient width to meet the side yard requirements  of this Ordinance, the 
Board of Zoning Appeals may grant a minimum variance to permit the construction of a one-
family residence. 



Applicant’s Reason for the Request 

Due to the position of electrical box tie-in and a window the roof structure would be 
approximately 4 feet in front of the existing structure.  The contractor will construct the roof 
to appear seamless to the existing structure. 

Surrounding Land Use within 1,000 Feet 

Residential 

Previous Related Development Decisions in the Immediate Area (3-5 Years) 

NA 

Comprehensive Plan Applied to the Geographical Area 

NA 

Existing Public Utilities 

No easements 

Soil Survey Data 

NA 

Flood Plain Information 

Not in Flood Plain 

Comments from City and County Agencies 

NA 

Supporting Maps & Graphics 

Enclosed 

Staff Recommendation 

 

 



















1501 Lynlee Dr 

 

 



 







 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board 

From: Pamela Timmons, Clerk of Council 

Date: August 12, 2021 

Subject: Staff Report for VA 21-06 3544 Ridgeway Rd 

 

Summary of the Request 

The request is to construct an accessory structure that 676 square feet which is larger than 
allowed by the Zoning Code.   

Applicant Information 
Thomas Cornelison 
3544 Ridgeway Rd 
Bellbrook, OH 45305 

Current Zoning District 

R-1B 

Parcel Identification 

L35000100030005000 

Applicable Zoning Code 

18.05A ACCESSORY BUILDINGS:  

Detached accessory buildings (including garages) constructed on a one-family lot shall not 
exceed, in the aggregate, six hundred (600) square feet. 

Applicant’s Reason for the Request 

The property owner wished to build an accessory structure to allow for vehicle storage, tool 
storage, household storage, and maintenance of vehicles. 

Surrounding Land Use within 1,000 Feet 



Residential 

Previous Related Development Decisions in the Immediate Area (3-5 Years) 

NA 

Comprehensive Plan Applied to the Geographical Area 

NA 

Existing Public Utilities 

10 foot utility easements along the rear and east property lines. 

Soil Survey Data 

NA 

Flood Plain Information 

Not in Flood Plain 

Comments from City and County Agencies 

NA 

Supporting Maps & Graphics 

Enclosed 

Staff Recommendation 

 

 









3544 Ridgeway Rd 

 



 


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



